
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library

, (
1.

United Sations

GE:\fERA.L
ASSEl\IBLY
FOlnY·THIRD SESSIO\

Official Records"

~-_. ---., ... -_ .._------_._- _.. _'- ._-----~._-- ------- .-.--~._-

SlJl-lMAR'{ REC>JF:D DF -;HE 1.J th t4ESTJNC;

C.l1j:'l,iJ,JI"t?U: HR. ;::;ENG (Sudan)

CDNTEN7S

;; IXTH C1MHITTEE
J 1 t 11 III f> (~ t j :1 er

nelrJ nn
"cr.obpr lU:J,H

;1 t :~ p. in.
Now "Lock

AGENDA ITEM 127: SThTUS OF THE PROTOC:JLS ADDITIONAL Tf] THE GENEV 1... COUVEHTIONS OF
1949 A.ND RELATING TO THE PROTECTION eF VICTIMS OF AHMF:D C(jNFLICTS

88-56120

;In

03795 (E) ,-_......_---- ------'[

.... HnCOpr Av"'"

Distr. GENERAL
A/C.6/43/SR.11
19 October 1988
ENGLISH
ORIGINAL: FRENCH

, (
1.

United Sations

GE:\fERA.L
ASSEl\IBLY
FOlnY·THIRD SESSIO\

Official Records"

~-_. ---., ... -_ .._------_._- _.. _'- ._-----~._-- ------- .-.--~._-

SlJl-lMAR'{ REC>JF:D DF -;HE 1.J th t4ESTJNC;

C.l1j:'l,iJ,JI"t?U: HR. ;::;ENG (Sudan)

CDNTEN7S

;; IXTH C1MHITTEE
J 1 t 11 III f> (~ t j :1 er

nelrJ nn
"cr.obpr lU:J,H

;1 t :~ p. in.
Now "Lock

AGENDA ITEM 127: SThTUS OF THE PROTOC:JLS ADDITIONAL Tf] THE GENEV 1... COUVEHTIONS OF
1949 A.ND RELATING TO THE PROTECTION eF VICTIMS OF AHMF:D C(jNFLICTS

88-56120

;In

03795 (E) ,-_......_---- ------'[

.... HnCOpr Av"'"

Distr. GENERAL
A/C.6/43/SR.11
19 October 1988
ENGLISH
ORIGINAL: FRENCH



Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library

A/C.6/43/SR.ll
Enqlhh
Page 2

AGENO~ ITEM 1271 ST~TUS OF THE PROTOCOLS AOOITION~L TO THE GENEVA CONVENTIONS OF
1949 AND RELATING TO THE PROTECTION OF VICTIMS OF ARMED CONFLICTS (A/43/532)

1. 'the CHAIBMbN, after briefly retracing the backqround of the quution under
consideration, said that Solomon Islands, from which the Swiss Government,
depositary of the Protocole, had rec.ived an instrument of acc.ssion to the two
Protocols on 19 Sept.mb.r 1988, should be added to the ~lst of Stat.s that had
ratified or acceded to the Protocols Additional to the Gelleva Conventions of 1949
as at 28 July 1988 which was annexed to the report of t.he SecretBry-General before
the Committee (A/43/532).

2. Mr. CHEUAUX-BSPOND (Obl.rver for Switzerland) eaid that, having convened in
1977 the Diplomatic Conferonce on the Reaffirmation and D.velopment of
International Humanitarian Law Applicable in Armed Conflicts, Which had given ris.
to Protocol. I and 11 Additional to the Geneva Conventions of 1949 for the
prutection of war victims, Switzerland was gratified to see the Sixth Committee
turn it. attention once more to the question of the statuI of the two instruments.
Th. Unit.d Nations played a vital role in promoting international humanitarian law,
and the Swis. Government paid particula~ tribute to the Secretary-General for hie
steadfa.t commitment to the humanitarian cau.e,

3. The Additional Protocol' relatillg to the protection ~f victim. of
.international and non-internat.1onal armed confUcts, pursued the same aims 81 the
Geneva Convention. of 1949, which th.y .upplement.d and clarified, bearinq in mind
the radical changes in the political and military situation since the end of the
Second World War. That meant that to a large extent they codiried the rules of
customary law, While spelling them out further on some points. But what it meant
above all wal that a. a re.ult of the wiJ~r scope of the two textr., all cases of
armed conflict, whether intel'-State, international or internal, could hencefort"h be
covered by the provisionw of the law of nations - without the Lpp~icQtion of the
Protocole affecting the juridical .t~tue of the parties to tha conflict and of the
territories in Which it was taking place.

4. ~ore specifically, those instruments strengthened the protection of civilians
and combatants. In particular, Protocol I embodied the fun~amental principles of
law set forth in The Hague Conventions iu a consistent set or rules, to which it
added rules concerning the protection (\( the natural enviror'ment and of works and
installations containinq dauqerous forces, such as nuclear installations.

5. It wa. therefore in the immediate interest not only of victims and combatantG
but al.o nf the international community as a whole for all States to become parti.s
to tho.e two in.trument.. "

e. The previous year, on the occasion of the tenth anniversary of the adoption on
8 June 1977 of the Additional Protocols, the Swi•• Government, which acted a.
depositary 01 the aeneva Convention. and the Additional Protocols, had appealed to

I... .

A/C.6/43/SR.ll
Enqlhh
Page 2

AGENO~ ITEM 1271 ST~TUS OF THE PROTOCOLS AOOITION~L TO THE GENEVA CONVENTIONS OF
1949 AND RELATING TO THE PROTECTION OF VICTIMS OF ARMED CONFLICTS (A/43/532)

1. 'the CHAIBMbN, after briefly retracing the backqround of the quution under
consideration, said that Solomon Islands, from which the Swiss Government,
depositary of the Protocole, had rec.ived an instrument of acc.ssion to the two
Protocols on 19 Sept.mb.r 1988, should be added to the ~lst of Stat.s that had
ratified or acceded to the Protocols Additional to the Gelleva Conventions of 1949
as at 28 July 1988 which was annexed to the report of t.he SecretBry-General before
the Committee (A/43/532).

2. Mr. CHEUAUX-BSPOND (Obl.rver for Switzerland) eaid that, having convened in
1977 the Diplomatic Conferonce on the Reaffirmation and D.velopment of
International Humanitarian Law Applicable in Armed Conflicts, Which had given ris.
to Protocol. I and 11 Additional to the Geneva Conventions of 1949 for the
prutection of war victims, Switzerland was gratified to see the Sixth Committee
turn it. attention once more to the question of the statuI of the two instruments.
Th. Unit.d Nations played a vital role in promoting international humanitarian law,
and the Swis. Government paid particula~ tribute to the Secretary-General for hie
steadfa.t commitment to the humanitarian cau.e,

3. The Additional Protocol' relatillg to the protection ~f victim. of
.international and non-internat.1onal armed confUcts, pursued the same aims 81 the
Geneva Convention. of 1949, which th.y .upplement.d and clarified, bearinq in mind
the radical changes in the political and military situation since the end of the
Second World War. That meant that to a large extent they codiried the rules of
customary law, While spelling them out further on some points. But what it meant
above all wal that a. a re.ult of the wiJ~r scope of the two textr., all cases of
armed conflict, whether intel'-State, international or internal, could hencefort"h be
covered by the provisionw of the law of nations - without the Lpp~icQtion of the
Protocole affecting the juridical .t~tue of the parties to tha conflict and of the
territories in Which it was taking place.

4. ~ore specifically, those instruments strengthened the protection of civilians
and combatants. In particular, Protocol I embodied the fun~amental principles of
law set forth in The Hague Conventions iu a consistent set or rules, to which it
added rules concerning the protection (\( the natural enviror'ment and of works and
installations containinq dauqerous forces, such as nuclear installations.

5. It wa. therefore in the immediate interest not only of victims and combatantG
but al.o nf the international community as a whole for all States to become parti.s
to tho.e two in.trument.. "

e. The previous year, on the occasion of the tenth anniversary of the adoption on
8 June 1977 of the Additional Protocols, the Swi•• Government, which acted a.
depositary 01 the aeneva Convention. and the Additional Protocols, had appealed to

I... .



Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library

A/C.6/43/SR.ll
English
Page 3

(Mr. Chenaux~R~P9nd( Obser~er,

Switzerland)

all State's to take all measures in their power to ensure respect fo~ .h~lanitarian

law. It had ,expressed the hope' that the ,greatest possible number oi·.$tiates would,
become parties toProtocols I'anp II, so that those instrw:n~nts would ':e;~~y, the
degree of universality of the Geneva, COfwentions. To'date,}7 States had ratif.ied
or acceded to Protocol I and 69 hed ratified 'or acceded t,o P,totocol II.
Switzerland paid tri"bute to the cont"ibution made by:those countries to the
development of international humanitarian law, and cherished ,the nope that the two
instrwnents 'would rally the support of all States iri the 'ne'ar future.

7. Switzerland was al!:)o deeply concerned ab01l. t 'the increasingly widespread use of
small-cal ibre high-ene'rgy-transrermuni tions. The use, of such muni t'i ems i -which
were apt to fragment in, the human body ,was contrary to customary international
humani ta:rian law, as codified in article 35 of Addi,tiorial Protocol!, which
prohibited projectiles'of a nature to cEiUs;esuperfluous injury.l in the 1899 Hague
Declaration concerning the use of bullets Whi'ch expand or fl,atterieasily in the
human body and in the 1980 Convention on P'to,hibitions or Restrictions on the Use of
Certain Conventional Weapons Whic!) M'ay BeD-earned to., Be E:xce,s'sively I,njurious or to
Have I ndi scr im ina,ate Ef fe cts .Swit.;z'e'r~anw.' t::he;r'eif"orjalnvi ted'$'tatest;.o refrain from
equipping their forces with munitions that were cont!,l:'ary to i,nternatiional
humanitarian rules.

'"

8. It was particularly important to ,ensu'te'th~iit*~it.et,n'atibn~',fh1,1Ih,'a.)(ritari;~:~rules
were applied universally and that h\ll1l:anitad:an 0'rg~nJi,zatio:ns,,;.~et"e:,aDleto perform
their duties effectively, while constant,ly aleL't/ingp;U'bl~cop,d;~ii~n,'totne issue.
There wa,s no doubt that the. SixthCommitteeprovi~'ed::acons~,t'uG:£i~~tontd~utionto
that endeavour to promote solida,rity with me:ri.,wome\n ana ch,iJ:Cii;enwho, had fallen
victim to adversity. ' '

9. Mr. HERNDL (Austria) said that ever since tl;ieq,uestiortof'tl'i'e s'tatus of the
Protocols Addi tiona'1 to the 1949 Geneva Co,nv.$nti{i}ns,,;a,n.e rel~~ii1,(~ttot;lteprotect~on
of victims of armed conflicts ha'dfiir;st ,been inc.lud,e,din theil\i$;S~inP''1y'sagenda, the
purpose of the Sixth Committee's considera,tionof the, itemhad;::I:!,e;~rltQensurethat
gradually States would ratify oracoeo.e to t:h'eProt.ocbl$ soth~t:t.'tiey \ioulobe.come
part and parcel of generally accepted tfuman,ita,tian. .iaw.- GeneMa',:J.aW'-the fO,U:r
Geneva Conventions of 1949'and the two 'Addition~iPr,otocols -::\ir~~essen.t'ia1 to
ensure minimum protection for hwnan bein~$.Jnthe~~'el").§'OflM:'!!l?~@. 'conlfHct a,pd. i~
similar situations. Such situations heldl?OJrt~cu;l.;2il'!: d:a;iiger,g./t'~q;-j;;I:J.:diVid'\.l.alssil,lce
State organs, claiming observance tif "high$r, inter~;$t"s" -t.boS,tFbf"theStat.e .'.:"
tended to disregard certain esse'ntical rUlep'desig:n~dto sa'fef:l~?!i~:.t:;1Je i-ndivi,0'tlaJ;..

10. ReferI:1n-9 to the most recenJ. tesolutiOl)adopti~~':I1l;Y the U",e.,I;l:l;!rl;i Assemf:rly on ,the
issue (resolution 41/72), hesa.i.d tp,at compJianS~"~~ft;;h.,:t~e .rtti:e'~.,t~,t~.orth in those
instruments had pr;oved to be of the utmQst':lmpbr~a:i;l~e,~in,rep~'~\l;l'~Q~~1:.i.ct.s. It was.
therefore hearte~;i.)'lg to' note froJllthe Seor~tary..,G~~e;ral~$ t:ep~.1i';t;·~~/4~/53~J that
the number of St;;ate.s parties to the Additional Pro,t6col;slJ.ad '~'~I!:'f;e,asea; Austria had
ratified them as ea:rly as 1982.

I •..

A/C.6/43/SR.ll
English
Page 3

(Mr. Chenaux~R~P9nd( Obser~er,

Switzerland)

all State's to take all measures in their power to ensure respect fo~ .h~lanitarian

law. It had ,expressed the hope' that the ,greatest possible number oi·.$tiates would,
become parties toProtocols I'anp II, so that those instrw:n~nts would ':e;~~y, the
degree of universality of the Geneva, COfwentions. To'date,}7 States had ratif.ied
or acceded to Protocol I and 69 hed ratified 'or acceded t,o P,totocol II.
Switzerland paid tri"bute to the cont"ibution made by:those countries to the
development of international humanitarian law, and cherished ,the nope that the two
instrwnents 'would rally the support of all States iri the 'ne'ar future.

7. Switzerland was al!:)o deeply concerned ab01l. t 'the increasingly widespread use of
small-cal ibre high-ene'rgy-transrermuni tions. The use, of such muni t'i ems i -which
were apt to fragment in, the human body ,was contrary to customary international
humani ta:rian law, as codified in article 35 of Addi,tiorial Protocol!, which
prohibited projectiles'of a nature to cEiUs;esuperfluous injury.l in the 1899 Hague
Declaration concerning the use of bullets Whi'ch expand or fl,atterieasily in the
human body and in the 1980 Convention on P'to,hibitions or Restrictions on the Use of
Certain Conventional Weapons Whic!) M'ay BeD-earned to., Be E:xce,s'sively I,njurious or to
Have I ndi scr im ina,ate Ef fe cts .Swit.;z'e'r~anw.' t::he;r'eif"orjalnvi ted'$'tatest;.o refrain from
equipping their forces with munitions that were cont!,l:'ary to i,nternatiional
humanitarian rules.

'"

8. It was particularly important to ,ensu'te'th~iit*~it.et,n'atibn~',fh1,1Ih,'a.)(ritari;~:~rules
were applied universally and that h\ll1l:anitad:an 0'rg~nJi,zatio:ns,,;.~et"e:,aDleto perform
their duties effectively, while constant,ly aleL't/ingp;U'bl~cop,d;~ii~n,'totne issue.
There wa,s no doubt that the. SixthCommitteeprovi~'ed::acons~,t'uG:£i~~tontd~utionto
that endeavour to promote solida,rity with me:ri.,wome\n ana ch,iJ:Cii;enwho, had fallen
victim to adversity. ' '

9. Mr. HERNDL (Austria) said that ever since tl;ieq,uestiortof'tl'i'e s'tatus of the
Protocols Addi tiona'1 to the 1949 Geneva Co,nv.$nti{i}ns,,;a,n.e rel~~ii1,(~ttot;lteprotect~on
of victims of armed conflicts ha'dfiir;st ,been inc.lud,e,din theil\i$;S~inP''1y'sagenda, the
purpose of the Sixth Committee's considera,tionof the, itemhad;::I:!,e;~rltQensurethat
gradually States would ratify oracoeo.e to t:h'eProt.ocbl$ soth~t:t.'tiey \ioulobe.come
part and parcel of generally accepted tfuman,ita,tian. .iaw.- GeneMa',:J.aW'-the fO,U:r
Geneva Conventions of 1949'and the two 'Addition~iPr,otocols -::\ir~~essen.t'ia1 to
ensure minimum protection for hwnan bein~$.Jnthe~~'el").§'OflM:'!!l?~@. 'conlfHct a,pd. i~
similar situations. Such situations heldl?OJrt~cu;l.;2il'!: d:a;iiger,g./t'~q;-j;;I:J.:diVid'\.l.alssil,lce
State organs, claiming observance tif "high$r, inter~;$t"s" -t.boS,tFbf"theStat.e .'.:"
tended to disregard certain esse'ntical rUlep'desig:n~dto sa'fef:l~?!i~:.t:;1Je i-ndivi,0'tlaJ;..

10. ReferI:1n-9 to the most recenJ. tesolutiOl)adopti~~':I1l;Y the U",e.,I;l:l;!rl;i Assemf:rly on ,the
issue (resolution 41/72), hesa.i.d tp,at compJianS~"~~ft;;h.,:t~e .rtti:e'~.,t~,t~.orth in those
instruments had pr;oved to be of the utmQst':lmpbr~a:i;l~e,~in,rep~'~\l;l'~Q~~1:.i.ct.s. It was.
therefore hearte~;i.)'lg to' note froJllthe Seor~tary..,G~~e;ral~$ t:ep~.1i';t;·~~/4~/53~J that
the number of St;;ate.s parties to the Additional Pro,t6col;slJ.ad '~'~I!:'f;e,asea; Austria had
ratified them as ea:rly as 1982.

I •..



Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library

l\/C.5/43/SR.11

English
Page 4

(Mr. Hernd~ Austria)

11. The nwnber of States pac-ties to the Prot:JcoL; ''''us <:hl:';P 1::0 ::a11 flf the
membership of the United Nations, which he sa\'l as c\Jl eYlC'Ouragement to pursue t.he
campaign [or ratification of and accession to the Protocols. In tlleil:" own \.ay,
they were as important as the Geneva Com:entions and should there[oI"e command the
samt'~ support in the long term. The Aust.r idn ·_~(jveI"nme:1r. t(lereforc ca] ~ed n;~)()n all
Stl'\tes ·...,hieh \'lere par"ties t.o the Gell~va !~onvent iOllS ~"<) t:7.ke the necessi''.l y steps <'IS

soun as possible to !)<;?come pa:"ties to the Protocols. Onl}' if States showed, by
"taking practical and legal steps, that they were determined to respect the
fundamental nOl'mS uf humanitarian la\'l in a;U armed confJ ict3 would it be possible
to ensure minimum protectiun' for the individual. One of the mai:l purpo::;'?s of the
United Nations was the prevention of war and the maintenance of peace. However.
conflicts had erupted t1me and again and it was with a 7iew to minimizing their
cOllsequences that nations haa drawn up the Geneva Conventions and supplemented the~

by the Additional Protocols. The 1rtternational community should therefor~ spare nu
effol-ts to ensure universa.1 acceptance ot the Pro1:ocols and the humanitarian law of
\·thich tney formed PiH't.

The meeting rose at 3 ~ 30-lh!D..

l\/C.5/43/SR.11

English
Page 4

(Mr. Hernd~ Austria)

11. The nwnber of States pac-ties to the Prot:JcoL; ''''us <:hl:';P 1::0 ::a11 flf the
membership of the United Nations, which he sa\'l as c\Jl eYlC'Ouragement to pursue t.he
campaign [or ratification of and accession to the Protocols. In tlleil:" own \.ay,
they were as important as the Geneva Com:entions and should there[oI"e command the
samt'~ support in the long term. The Aust.r idn ·_~(jveI"nme:1r. t(lereforc ca] ~ed n;~)()n all
Stl'\tes ·...,hieh \'lere par"ties t.o the Gell~va !~onvent iOllS ~"<) t:7.ke the necessi''.l y steps <'IS

soun as possible to !)<;?come pa:"ties to the Protocols. Onl}' if States showed, by
"taking practical and legal steps, that they were determined to respect the
fundamental nOl'mS uf humanitarian la\'l in a;U armed confJ ict3 would it be possible
to ensure minimum protectiun' for the individual. One of the mai:l purpo::;'?s of the
United Nations was the prevention of war and the maintenance of peace. However.
conflicts had erupted t1me and again and it was with a 7iew to minimizing their
cOllsequences that nations haa drawn up the Geneva Conventions and supplemented the~

by the Additional Protocols. The 1rtternational community should therefor~ spare nu
effol-ts to ensure universa.1 acceptance ot the Pro1:ocols and the humanitarian law of
\·thich tney formed PiH't.

The meeting rose at 3 ~ 30-lh!D..




